
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date 08/03/10 Telephone Enquiries  01752 304022 Fax 01752 304819 

Please ask for Helen Wright, Democratic 
Support Officer e-mail helen.wright@plymouth.gov.uk 

 
 
CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY PANEL (SCRUTINY REVIEWS) 
 
FINANCIAL INCLUSION STRATEGY – REFRESH OF THE 
ACTION PLAN TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 
DATE: 
TIME: 
PLACE: 

TUESDAY 16 MARCH 2010 
10.00 AM 
COUNCIL HOUSE, PLYMOUTH (NEXT TO THE CIVIC 
CENTRE) 

  
Committee Members– 
Councillor Fox, Chair. 
Councillor Wildy, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Berrow and Mrs Nicholson. 
 
 
Substitutes–: 
Any Member other than a Member of the Cabinet may act as a substitute 
member. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of 
business overleaf. 
 
Members and Officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the 
meeting. 

 
 BARRY KEEL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

BARRY KEEL 
Chief Executive 
Floor 1 - Civic Centre 
Plymouth 
PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Public Document Pack



 

 
CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SCRUTINY REVIEWS) 
FINANCIAL INCLUSION STRATEGY – REFRESH OF THE ACTION PLAN 

TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 
 

PART I (PUBLIC COMMITTEE) 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Panel Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on 

this agenda. 
  
3. FINANCIAL INCLUSION STRATEGY - REFRESH OF THE 

ACTION PLAN   
(Pages 1 - 44) 

  
 The Assistant Director for Safer Communities will provide information on the 

Financial Inclusion Strategy – refresh of the action plan for the Task and Finish 
Group, including -  
 

● Strategy document;  
● Cabinet report 17 March 2009; 
● Notes on meeting held on 24 November 2009; 
● Request for Scrutiny  Work Programme Item. 

 

  
4. RECOMMENDATIONS    
  
 Members will make recommendations in line with the scope of the review. 
  
 
 
 



 1 

 
 

Plymouth City Council 
 

 
 

 

Financial Inclusion: 
A multi agency strategy for 

Plymouth 
April 2009 to March 2012 

 
 

Financial Inclusion is the process which ensures a person’s in-
coming money is maximised, their out-goings are controlled and 

they can exercise informed choices through access to basic 
financial services. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Please ask if you would like this Financial Inclusion Strategy 2009-20012 in 
another language or accessible format, please contact 01752 304321  

 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 2 

 
 

CONTENTS 
 

Section                                                                                   Page No     
 
 
Foreword           3  
 
 
Executive summary         5 
 
 
Introduction           6 
 
 
Background           6 
 
 
New challenges                                 6 
   
 
Plymouth’s Sustainable Community Strategy          10 
 
 
How we will improve financial inclusion in Plymouth         10 
 
 
Conclusion                 11 
 
 
Financial Inclusion Strategy Action Plan 2009-2012         12 
 
 
Appendices                 19 
 
 
 
 
 
For further information, please contact Plymouth City Council’s Social Inclusion Unit, 
Telephone:  01752 304321 
E-mail – inclusion@plymouth.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 2



 3 

 
 
Foreword 
 
Against a national background of a rapidly worsening economic situation, Plymouth faces 
major challenges in supporting people to cope with financial pressures. 
 
With the steep decline in house prices, increasing unemployment and unavailability of 
affordable credit, problem debt and house repossessions are increasing rapidly. Yet nationally, 
there is nearly £10 billion of unclaimed welfare benefits and tax credits. The biggest under-
claims are in Council Tax Benefits (mainly pensioners), Pension Credit and Working Tax 
Credit. 
 
During 2008, Plymouth experienced a 75% increase in mortgage and 57% increase in rent 
possession orders, compared to 2007. The third sector expects to deal with over £100m of 
debt in Plymouth this financial year, and - based on national figures – we could have £48.5 
million in unclaimed welfare benefits and tax credits. In addition, almost 12,000 households in 
Plymouth are in fuel poverty.  
 
People with problem debt and low incomes are likely to experience poorer quality of life and 
less opportunity. Often hard earned wages go on high interest credit repayments which means 
less of those wages are recycled within the city. Many don’t feel the full benefit of a return to 
work as they are missing out on their entitlement to tax credits and welfare benefits. Their life 
story acts as a disincentive to others thinking of making the same journey and means 
Plymouth’s overall income and expenditure is not as high as it could be.  
 
The government recommends that those experiencing money problems seek expert advice. Its 
back to work agenda is likely to see an increase in enquiries from lone parents, sick and 
disabled people. However, tightening budgets mean many agencies are withdrawing these 
services. For instance, Job Centreplus has withdrawn its traditional role as first port of call for 
benefits advice; instead signposting callers to leaflets or the third sector.   
 
Plymouth has a good track record of working in partnership on financial inclusion issues. Our 
award-winning multi-agency Income Maximisation Strategy, delivered over £13 million in 
previously unclaimed benefits and tax credits and we have a successful track record of 
commissioning advice services from the third sector. Nationally too, some progress has been 
made. Pension poverty has fallen by 50% over the last 6 years and over half a million children 
lifted out of poverty over the last five years.  But we now face new challenges.    
 
These challenges will inevitably see an increased demand for local advice and support 
services of the kind provided by the third sector. In Plymouth, November 2007 to October 2008 
saw debt enquiries up 26% and welfare benefits enquiries up 50%, compared to the same 
period in the previous year.  
 
Ensuring advice and support is provided in the best possible way and delivering financial 
inclusion through multi-agency work, are key components of our new Financial Inclusion 
Strategy. As part of our approach to tackling poverty and deprivation in Plymouth, we want to 
promote financial inclusion 
 
Financial Inclusion is the process which ensures a person’s in-coming money is 
maximised, their out-goings are controlled and they can exercise informed choices 
through access to basic financial services. 
 
 
 

Page 3



 4 

 
 
By promoting financial inclusion, we aim to maximise opportunities and improve quality of life 
during difficult times. This will contribute to narrowing the gap between our most and least 
deprived neighbourhoods. This will assist in making Plymouth one of Europe’s finest, most 
vibrant waterfront cities where an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone through 
people becoming healthier, wealthier, safer and wiser. 
 
 
  
Councillor Peter Brookshaw (Cabinet member for Safer and Stronger Communities, Housing 

and Supporting People and Community Cohesion)  

 
 
 
Steve Meakin  (Chair of the Institute of Money Advisers) 
 
 
 
March 2009 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 5 

 
 

 
Executive Summary  
 
In 2006, PCC and its partners worked together to develop the only multi-agency Income 
Maximisation Strategy in England. The Strategy brought together advice agencies across all 
sectors to deliver the best possible services in Plymouth and was recognised in 2007 by the 
Institute of Revenues, Ratings and Valuations annual awards as best practice in the country. 
The Income Maximisation Strategy successfully coordinated services that dealt with over £190 
million of problem debt and raised £13 million of previously unclaimed welfare benefits and tax 
credits.  
 
However, the economic downturn presents us with new challenges in supporting people to 
cope with financial pressures. Unemployment is rising, house prices are falling and more 
people are experiencing fuel poverty. There is a lack of affordable credit and problem debt and 
house repossessions are increasing. There are also challenges in achieving national return to 
work and child poverty objectives. These changes are placing increased pressures on already 
stretched advice services.  
 
In response to these issues, this Financial Inclusion Strategy 2009-20012 has been developed 
by Plymouth City Council in partnership with other organisations to improve financial inclusion. 
Financial Inclusion is the process which ensures a person’s in-coming money is maximised, 
their out-goings are controlled and they can exercise informed choices through access to basic 
financial services. 
 
In January 2009, a consultation document was distributed via partners across all sectors. It 
invited people to identify Financial Inclusion work that will enable Plymouth City Council and 
its partners to work together to co-ordinate and monitor progress and achieve the best 
possible results for the people of Plymouth. This consultation, together with an analysis of 
current issues has been used to inform the Financial Inclusion Strategy’s key aims, which 
are:- 

• Maximise take up of welfare benefits and tax credits with an emphasis on in-work 
benefits 

• Reduce problem debt 
• Provide accessible and high quality Financial Inclusion services 
• Reduce fuel poverty  
• Maximise opportunities for delivering Financial Inclusion through partnership working. 

 
To achieve our aims, we will undertake a series of actions including :-  

• Commissioning face to face debt and money advice 
• Strengthening credit union provision as an alternative to doorstep lending 
• Targeted advice to remove barriers to work e.g. tax credit and child care for parents 
• Awareness-raising for advice agencies on fuel poverty 
• Production of fact sheets reflecting economic climate 
• Welfare benefits and tax credit take -up initiatives. 

 
As a result of this consultation, we have identified the following changes in emphasis 
(compared to the previous Income Maximisation strategy – see paragraph 2.1):-  

• Prioritisation of take up of in-work benefits and tax credits  
• More focus on money and debt advice for people adversely affected by the economic 

situation  
• Not only maximising income, but assisting people in using their money to best 

advantage; 
• Delivering debt prevention services as well as debt remedy services. 

Page 5



 6 

  
The Financial Inclusion Strategy Action Plan provides detailed outputs and outcomes, against 
which progress will be monitored by a multi agency, multi sector steering group. 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 People with problem debt and low incomes are likely to experience poorer quality of life 
and less opportunity than others. Quite simply, if you experience debt or income problems, you 
are less likely to be healthy, wealthy, safe or wise. Despite this, we know that every year, large 
numbers of people in Plymouth are experiencing problem debt and wasting their hard earned 
wages on high interest credit repayments. This means less of those wages are recycled within 
the city. Many don’t feel the full benefit of a return to work as they are missing out on their 
entitlement to Tax Credits and Welfare Benefits and their life story acts as a disincentive to 
others thinking of making the same journey. This also means that the City’s overall income and 
expenditure is not as high as it could be.  

1.2 In response to these issues, this Financial Inclusion Strategy 2009-2012 has been 
developed by Plymouth City Council (PCC), in partnership with other organisations to improve 
financial inclusion in Plymouth. This builds on the work of our multi agency Income 
Maximisation Strategy 2006-2009 (See Appendix 2)  

1.3 On the basis of consultation with a wide range of partners in the statutory and third sectors, 
and analysis of the effects of the current and emerging economic downturn in Plymouth, we 
have identified clear aims. This includes maximising welfare benefits and tax credits take up 
with an emphasis on in-work benefits, reducing problem debt and fuel poverty and delivering 
quality financial inclusion services through partnership working 
       
1.4 We have considered the background and context for financial inclusion work in Plymouth, 
and this strategy describes how we intend to approach future work through a detailed action 
plan. 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 In 2006, we developed the only multi-agency Income Maximisation Strategy in England 
and Wales. A working group was set up comprising representatives of all sectors. Feedback 
from subsequent consultation indicated strong support for PCC to lead the development of a 
multi agency Income Maximisation Strategy (IMS). As a result, the IMS was developed to 
address identified priorities. We achieved many positive outcomes, including realising over £12 
million in previously unclaimed welfare benefits and tax credits, assisting over 5000 people 
with problem debt and a strong partnership approach between statutory and third sector 
partners to achieve real outcomes. (See Appendix 2)  
 
3. New Challenges 
 
3.1 The economic downturn presents us with new challenges in supporting people to cope with 
financial pressures. Unemployment is rising, house prices are falling and more people are 
experiencing fuel poverty. There is a lack of affordable credit and problem debt and house 
repossessions are increasing. There are also challenges in achieving national return to work 
and child poverty objectives. These changes are placing increased pressures on already 
stretched advice services  
 
3.2 Despite this, nationally, as many as 6 million people missed out on means tested benefits 
last year totalling £10 billion. This includes up to 1.8 million pensioners estimated to be entitled 

Page 6



 7 

to Pension Credit, up to 2.9 million people missing out on Council Tax Benefit and almost a 
million people missing out on £2,280 million of unclaimed housing benefit.  
 
 
 
3.3 In addition, Tax Credits are a crucial extra financial aid for those supporting children and 
those with low incomes. However, to many, the process is complex and confusing. Nationwide, 
around £4.3 billion worth of tax credits went unclaimed last year,and Citizens Advice received 
over 3.5 million calls from people who were confused by the Tax credit and benefit system. 

3.4 Using these national figures, it is estimated that there is £48.5 million of unclaimed benefits 
& tax credits in Plymouth, with 25,000 people missing out on their full entitlement. This 
includes 7,750 pensioners who are entitled to Pension Credit as well as 11,800 people entitled 
to Council Tax Benefit and 4,000 entitled to Housing Benefit.  

3.5 Law/policy changes 
3.5.1 The government wants to see 80% of adults in work and plans radical welfare reform to 
get there. This includes simplifying working age benefits, and removing Incapacity Benefit in 
favour of Employment Support Allowance. 

3.5.2 There are carrots and sticks: people may have to work for their benefits if still claiming 
Jobseekers Allowance after two years, but there is also the promise of personalised support to 
help disabled people into work. Child maintenance payments will no longer be deducted from 
out-of-work benefits for parents, but those on benefits whose eldest child is 12 or older will be 
expected to look for work. 

3.5.3 Plymouth has a higher than average number of lone parents and people not working who 
receive Incapacity Benefit. (See appendix 4)  It is precisely these two groups which the 
government is targeting with its “back to work” changes in welfare benefits. As households 
adapt to these new priorities , this is likely to lead to an increased need for advice services.   
 
3.6 Debt  
3.6.1 Problem debt is a growing concern. The statistics below illustrate the trend around 
lending and the increase in personal indebtedness1. 
• Total UK personal debt at the end of October 2008 stood at £1,455 billion, an increase of 

4.7% over the previous 12 months. This equates to £64billion more.  
• Total consumer credit lending to individuals at the end of October 2008 was £235billion. 

This was an increase of 5.5% over the previous 12 months.  
• The average household debt in the UK is £59,630  
• 1 person every 4.8 minutes is declared bankrupt or insolvent. 

3.6.2 Using national averages, we can estimate that in Plymouth:-  
• Total personal debt including mortgages is approximately £6.3 billion  
• £1 billion is owed in non-secured debt.  
• 1 in every 11 households or 18,000 people has debt that brings risk of poverty through debt 

repayments  
• 36,000 in Plymouth have priority debts that they owe money on. 
• The third sector expects to deal with over £100m of problem debt this year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
1 www.poverty.org.uk 

Page 7



 8 

 
 
3.7 Repossessions 
3.7.1 Nationally, there were 28,000 repossessions in 2007/08, an expected 45,000 
repossessions in 2008/09, and an anticipated 75,000 in 2009/10. In addition, the most recent 
Citizens Advice Bureau figures for July to September 2008 (Q2 2008/9) show a 51% increase 
in new mortgage and secured loan enquiries. Locally, Plymouth County Court is experiencing 
an increase of repossession cases, as the table below shows. 
 

REPOSSESSIONS IN PLYMOUTH (October to December 2008)  
 Total % increase over the previous 12 months 
Mortgages claims issued 217 18% 
Landlord claims issued 297 77% 
Mortgage possession orders made 198 75% 
Landlord possession orders made 211 44% 
 
3.8 Unemployment 
3.8.1 In December 2008, UK unemployment was estimated at 1.92 million. This was an 
increase of 131,000 from the previous three months, the highest level since September 1997. 
 
3.8.2 Unemployment in Plymouth has risen 53% in the last year, with the city's unemployment 
total increasing by 1,455, reaching a total of 4,176. This is expected to rise further 
 
3.9 Fuel Poverty  
3.9.1 A household is considered to be in fuel poverty if it spends 10% or more of its net income 
on achieving:- 

• The main living area with an average temperature of 21°c; 
• Other occupied rooms with an average temperature of 18°c;   
• Temperatures maintained for 16 hours per day for homes that are occupied all day; 
• Temperatures maintained for 9 hours per day for those homes whose inhabitants are in 

work or full time education. 1  
 
3.9.2 Fuel poverty currently affects approximately 2.4 million, or 11.5% of households in 
England.  There are also approximately 23,900 excess winter deaths in England and Wales, of 
which the underlying cause is exposure to cold 2. and a 10% increase in fuel debts compared 
to the same period last year (July to September 2007/2008) 
 
3.9.3 Fuel poverty decreased rapidly from over 6million households in 1996 to 2 million 
households in 2003. Since then fuel poverty has increased despite efforts to improve the 
energy efficiency of homes as price rises have significantly outstripped income rises.  
 
3.9.4 Using national averages, almost 12,000 households in Plymouth are affected by fuel 
poverty. In addition, between April and September 2008, over 200 people/families approached 
advice organisations in Plymouth because they are unable to afford their gas/electric bills.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
 2www.berr.gov.uk/files/file48036.pdf  

Page 8



 9 

 
 
 
 
3.10 Income Poverty  
3.10.1 A person is deemed to be experiencing income poverty if they receive less than 60% of 
UK average household income, after housing costs3. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.10.2 Recent government initiatives have resulted in significant reductions in poverty amongst 
pensioners and children. Pension poverty has fallen by at least 50% over the last 6 years4 and 
over half a million children have been lifted out of poverty over the last five years5.   
 
3.10.3 Using national averages, we can estimate that in Plymouth, approximately 1 in every 
4.7 households experiences income poverty, with over 13,300 children and 10,200 pensioners 
directly affected. However, given Plymouth’s position in the 2007 Index of Multiple Deprivation, 
when compared to national averages, these totals are likely to be higher. 
 
3.11 Advice 
3.11.1The government recommends that those experiencing money problems seek impartial 
expert advice. In Plymouth, these services are largely provided by the third sector. However, 
these organisations already have waiting lists which are expected to grow.  Plymouth Citizens 
Advice Bureau, which provides such advice, is seeing the effects of the economic downturn 
and has reported 34% more enquiries from people with debt and benefits problems in the last 
12 months. A particular area of concern is a 35% increase in mortgage and secured loan 
arrears problems over the last 12 months. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
3 www.cpag.org.uk 
4 www. communities.gov.uk 
5 IBID 

Nationally, income poverty 
affects 

21% of the 
population 

30% of all 
children 

5.31 million 
households 

19% of 
people over 
60 

12.7 million 
people 

4 million 
working 
age adults  

Page 9



 10 

 
 
4. Plymouth Sustainable Community Strategy 
 
4.1 Our Local Strategic Partnership’s vision for the future of Plymouth is 6:- 
 
“By 2020, Plymouth will be one of Europe’s best, most vibrant waterfront cities, where an 
outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone  
It will be:- 
• A healthy place to live and work 
• A city which creates and shares prosperity 
• A safe and strong city 
• A location for learning, achievement and leisure”. 
 
4.2 Financial inclusion has a direct role to play in helping Plymouth meet its strategic 
objectives particularly in respect of:- 
• Improving health and well-being 
• Developing a prosperous economy 
• Promoting inclusive communities.  

 
4.3 Financial inclusion issues, particularly access to advice services for Welfare Benefits and 
Tax Credits, are explicitly referred to in Plymouth City Council’s: Housing Strategy7; 
Homelessness Strategy8; and the Supporting People Strategy9. This Financial Inclusion 
Strategy therefore supports and complements the work being done in these areas. Financial 
inclusion work is also a specific element of the Council’s corporate improvement priority 4 – 
Reducing inequalities between communities.   
 
5. How we will improve financial inclusion in Plymouth 
 
5.1 A consultation document was distributed via Plymouth Welfare Rights Forum members, 
Devon Money Advice Forum, Advice for All and Local Strategic Partnership partners as well as 
other statutory and Third Sector partners. It invited suggestions that will enable Plymouth City 
Council and its partners to work together to co-ordinate and monitor progress and achieve the 
best possible results for the people of Plymouth.  
 
5.2 As a result of this consultation, we have identified the following changes in emphasis 
(compared to the previous Income Maximisation strategy – see paragraph 2.1):-  

• Prioritisation of take up of in-work benefits and tax credits  
• More focus on money and debt advice for people adversely affected by the economic 

situation  
• Not only maximising income, but assisting people in using their money to best 

advantage; 
• Delivering debt prevention services as well as debt remedy services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
6 Plymouth’s Sustainable Community Strategy 2007-2020  
7 Housing strategy 2008-2011 
8 Plymouth Homelessness Strategy 2008-2011 
9 Supporting People Five Year Strategy 2005-2010 

Page 10



 11 

 
5.3 Therefore, this Financial Inclusion Strategy and its associated action plan have been 
developed with five aims to address the issues identified as priorities during consultation.  
The aims are:- 
• Maximise take up of welfare benefits and tax credits with an emphasis on in-work benefits 
• Reduce problem debt 
• Provide accessible and high quality Financial Inclusion services 
• Reduce fuel poverty  
• Maximise opportunities for delivering Financial Inclusion through partnership working. 
 
5.4 Central to achieving our Financial Inclusion Strategy’s aims is the provision of good advice 
and support services. This strategy will be used to inform our commissioning of these services. 
 
5.5 To achieve our aims, we will undertake a series of actions including:-  

• Commissioning face to face debt and money advice 
• Strengthening credit union provision as an alternative to doorstep lending 
• Targeted advice to remove barriers to work e.g. tax credit and child care for parents 
• Awareness-raising for advice agencies on fuel poverty 
• Production of factsheets reflecting economic climate 
• Welfare benefits and tax credit take-up initiatives. 

 
5.6 Our action plan will be monitored quarterly to ensure barriers are addressed and targets 
achieved. 
 
6. Conclusion 
 
6.1 This strategy sets out the context and background to financial inclusion work and explains 
why we need a Financial Inclusion Strategy and action plan in Plymouth. It outlines what we 
need to do to improve financial inclusion and how we intend to achieve this, together with links 
to the Plymouth Sustainable Community Strategy. The following action plan provides the 
detailed action, targets, outputs and outcomes, against which we will monitor progress.  
 
 

Page 11



 
1

2
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 IN

C
L

U
S

IO
N

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 2

00
9-

20
12

 
 A

IM
 1

 –
 M

ax
im

is
e 

ta
ke

 u
p

 o
f 

w
el

fa
re

 b
en

ef
it

s 
an

d
 t

ax
 c

re
d

it
s 

w
it

h
 a

n
 e

m
p

h
as

is
 o

n
 in

-w
o

rk
 b

en
ef

it
s 

  
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
A

ct
io

ns
 

P
ar

tn
er

s/
L

ea
d

 
T

ar
ge

ts
 

O
ut

pu
t/O

ut
co

m
es

 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
1.

1 
- 

E
ns

ur
e 

ta
ke

 
up

 o
f i

n-
w

or
k 

w
el

fa
re

 b
en

ef
its

 
an

d 
in

 w
or

k 
ta

x 
cr

ed
its

. 

1.
1a

 -
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
w

el
fa

re
 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

ta
x 

cr
ed

it 
ad

vi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

k 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(S

oc
ia

l 
In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t)
, T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
(s

) 
to

 
b

e 
co

n
fi

rm
ed

 
  

A
ch

ie
ve

 a
 c

ity
 

w
id

e 
to

ta
l o

f a
t 

le
as

t £
4m

 p
er

 
an

nu
m

 o
f 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

un
cl

ai
m

ed
 

W
el

fa
re

 B
en

ef
its

 
an

d 
T

ax
 C

re
di

ts
. 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

“v
al

ue
”o

f w
or

k 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 p
ov

er
ty

.  

A
pr

il 
20

09
 a

nd
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
re

vi
ew

. 
 

1.
2a

.W
or

k 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 
ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 in
 w

or
k 

ta
x 

cr
ed

its
 a

nd
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

el
fa

re
 

be
ne

fit
s 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(S

oc
ia

l 
In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t)
, T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
(s

) 
to

 
b

e 
co

n
fi

rm
ed

.  

A
ch

ie
ve

 a
 c

ity
 

w
id

e 
to

ta
l o

f 
£6

00
,0

00
 in

 c
hi

ld
 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 r

el
at

ed
 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 a
 

to
ta

l o
f a

t l
ea

st
 

£4
m

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

of
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
un

cl
ai

m
ed

 
W

el
fa

re
 B

en
ef

its
 

an
d 

T
ax

 C
re

di
ts

,  

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

po
ve

rt
y 

in
 

P
ly

m
ou

th
. 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 a

nd
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
re

vi
ew

. 

1.
2 

- 
S

up
po

rt
 

fa
m

ili
es

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
w

el
fa

re
 b

en
ef

its
 

an
d 

ta
x 

cr
ed

it 
se

rv
ic

es
, w

or
ki

ng
 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
  

1.
2b

 –
 D

el
iv

er
 

ta
rg

et
ed

 c
am

pa
ig

ns
 

ai
m

ed
 a

t d
iff

er
en

t 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 g
ro

up
s 

e.
g.

 p
en

si
on

er
s,

 
ca

re
rs

, h
om

el
es

s 
pe

op
le

, p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
et

c 
 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(S

oc
ia

l 
In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t)
, T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
(s

) 
to

 
b

e 
co

n
fi

rm
ed

. 
  

D
el

iv
er

 a
t l

ea
st

 4
 

ta
rg

et
ed

 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

 p
er

 
ye

ar
  

Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 fo

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 b

ar
rie

rs
 

to
 e

nt
itl

em
en

t o
f i

n-
w

or
k 

ta
x 

cr
ed

its
 

an
d 

w
el

fa
re

 
be

ne
fit

s 
  

A
pr

il 
20

09
 a

nd
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
re

vi
ew

. 

Page 12



 
1

3
 

 A
IM

.2
 –

 R
ed

u
ce

 p
ro

b
le

m
 d

eb
t 

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
A

ct
io

ns
 

P
ar

tn
er

s/
L

ea
d

 
T

ar
ge

ts
 

O
ut

pu
t/O

ut
co

m
es

 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
2.

1 
- 

P
ro

vi
de

 
de

bt
 a

nd
 m

on
ey

 
ad

vi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

2.
1a

 –
C

om
m

is
si

on
 d

eb
t 

an
d 

m
on

ey
 a

dv
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

k 
w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.  

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(S

oc
ia

l 
In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t)
, T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
(s

) 
to

 b
e 

co
n

fi
rm

ed
 

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 a

n 
ad

vi
ce

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 w

ill
 d

ea
l w

ith
 

a 
ci

ty
 w

id
e 

to
ta

l o
f 

£1
00

m
 in

 
pe

rs
on

al
 p

ro
bl

em
 

de
bt

 p
er

 a
nn

um
, 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 d

eb
t 

ad
vi

ce
 in

 P
ly

m
ou

th
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
. 

2.
2 

– 
S

up
po

rt
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

de
bt

 a
nd

 m
on

ey
 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

  

2.
2a

 –
 D

el
iv

er
 ta

rg
et

ed
 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 a

im
ed

 a
t 

di
ffe

re
nt

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

gr
ou

ps
 e

.g
. c

ar
er

s,
 

ho
m

el
es

s 
pe

op
le

, 
pe

op
le

 b
ei

ng
 

re
po

ss
es

se
d,

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

et
c 

 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(S

oc
ia

l 
In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t)
, T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
(s

) 
to

 b
e 

co
n

fi
rm

ed
 

  

D
el

iv
er

 a
t l

ea
st

 4
 

ta
rg

et
ed

 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

 p
er

 
ye

ar
 a

im
ed

 a
t 

di
ffe

re
nt

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 g
ro

up
s 

 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 fo

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 b

ar
rie

rs
 

to
 d

eb
t a

nd
 m

on
ey

 
ad

vi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 a

nd
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
re

vi
ew

. 

Page 13



 
1

4
 

 A
IM

.3
 –

 P
ro

vi
d

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 q
u

al
it

y 
F

in
an

ci
al

 In
cl

u
si

o
n

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

A
ct

io
ns

 
P

ar
tn

er
s/

L
ea

d
 

T
ar

ge
ts

 
O

ut
pu

t/O
ut

co
m

es
 

T
im

es
ca

le
s 

3.
1a

 -
 E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 m
ak

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
bi

ds
 in

 o
rd

er
 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
p 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

cl
us

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

  

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 

 

S
ec

ur
e 

£6
00

,0
00

 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

 o
f 

ex
te

rn
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

 

M
or

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
ad

vi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 
P

ly
m

ou
th

 

A
pr

il 
20

09
  

3.
1b

 –
 C

on
tin

ue
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
A

dv
ic

e 
F

or
 A

ll 
as

 a
 

ne
tw

or
k 

fo
r 

ad
vi

ce
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

  

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

iz
en

s 
A

d
vi

ce
 B

u
re

au
, 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 
  

D
ev

el
op

 a
 

de
di

ca
te

d 
w

eb
si

te
 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
m

or
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 
ad

vi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 

3.
1c

 –
 P

ro
m

ot
e 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
st

ro
ng

 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
 in

 
P

ly
m

ou
th

, t
o 

be
co

m
e 

a 
fo

rm
al

 p
ar

tn
er

 w
ith

 
P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 
C

ou
nc

il 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 C
ity

 o
f P

ly
m

ou
th

 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
, F

or
tr

es
s 

C
re

di
t U

ni
on

, 
H

op
e 

C
re

di
t U

ni
on

. 
  

Id
en

tif
y 

a 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

C
re

di
t 

U
ni

on
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

ci
ty

 a
nd

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
pa

yr
ol

l 
de

du
ct

io
ns

 fo
r 

P
C

C
 s

ta
ff 

 

R
ed

uc
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
ex

cl
us

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

C
re

di
t U

ni
on

 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 

pr
ov

id
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 

sa
ve

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

lo
w

 c
os

t c
re

di
t  

O
ct

 2
00

9 
an

d 
6 

m
on

th
ly

 
re

vi
ew

 
 

3.
1d

 –
 P

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

A
dv

ic
e 

4 
A

ll 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

ad
vi

so
rs

 a
nd

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
  

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

iz
en

s 
A

d
vi

ce
 B

u
re

au
, 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

 
   

E
ns

ur
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
is

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 a

t 
le

as
t 2

 w
eb

si
te

s 
an

d 
in

 2
 c

ity
 w

id
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 

an
d 

br
ea

dt
h 

of
 

ad
vi

ce
 in

 P
ly

m
ou

th
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

9 
an

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

re
vi

ew
 

3.
1 

–I
m

pr
ov

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

cl
us

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

 

3.
1e

 –
 T

ra
in

 P
C

C
 

fr
on

t l
in

e 
st

af
f a

nd
 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

to
pi

cs
 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

nd
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
er

s.
 

   

T
ra

in
 a

t l
ea

st
 2

0 
fr

on
t l

in
e 

st
af

f a
nd

 
10

 m
em

be
rs

 

P
eo

pl
e 

us
in

g 
th

e 
ca

ll 
ce

nt
re

, a
nd

 
co

un
ci

llo
r 

su
rg

er
ie

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ad

vi
ce

 

D
ec

 2
00

9 
an

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

re
vi

ew
 

Page 14



 
1

5
 

A
IM

.3
 –

 P
ro

vi
d

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 q
u

al
it

y 
F

in
an

ci
al

 In
cl

u
si

o
n

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
(C

o
n

t)
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

A
ct

io
ns

 
P

ar
tn

er
s/

L
ea

d
 

T
ar

ge
ts

 
O

ut
pu

t/O
ut

co
m

es
 

T
im

es
ca

le
s 

 
3.

1f
  -

 D
ev

el
op

 
ou

tr
ea

ch
 a

dv
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

.g
. 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

en
tr

es
, 

S
ur

e 
st

ar
ts

, s
ch

oo
ls

 
et

c.
   

 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(S

oc
ia

l 
In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t)
, T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
(s

) 
to

 b
e 

co
n

fi
rm

ed
. 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
at

 le
as

t 1
0 

re
gu

la
r 

ou
tr

ea
ch

 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 
P

ly
m

ou
th

, 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 a
dv

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0 

 A
IM

.4
 –

 R
ed

u
ce

 f
u

el
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
A

ct
io

ns
 

P
ar

tn
er

s/
L

ea
d

 
T

ar
ge

ts
 

O
ut

pu
t/O

ut
co

m
es

 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
4.

1 
Im

pr
ov

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ab

ou
t 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
an

d 
fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
. 

4.
1a

 –
 D

el
iv

er
 fu

el
 

po
ve

rt
y 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
se

ss
io

ns
 to

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 s
ta

ff,
 

ad
vi

se
rs

, c
om

m
un

ity
, 

us
er

 a
nd

 in
te

re
st

 
gr

ou
ps

. 
 

W
es

tc
o

u
n

tr
y 

E
n

er
g

y 
A

ct
io

n
 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 
    

D
el

iv
er

 fu
el

 p
ov

er
ty

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

se
ss

io
ns

 to
 a

 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 1
00

 
pe

op
le

 p
er

 a
nn

um
. 

M
or

e 
fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
 

ad
vi

so
rs

 in
 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
. 

4.
2 

E
m

be
d 

fu
el

 
po

ve
rt

y 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ad

vi
ce

 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

 

4.
2a

 -
 P

ro
vi

de
 fu

el
 

po
ve

rt
y 

ad
vi

ce
 in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f g
en

er
al

 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

cl
us

io
n 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 

  

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 fr
on

t 
lin

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

in
cl

us
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ha
ve

 tr
ai

ne
d 

fu
el

 
po

ve
rt

y 
ad

vi
se

rs
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 
is

su
es

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 

fu
el

 p
ov

er
ty

. 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9.
 

4.
3 

R
ai

se
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
in

 th
e 

ad
vi

ce
 s

ec
to

r 
to

 
al

le
vi

at
in

g 
fu

el
 

po
ve

rt
y 

in
 g

en
er

ic
 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

4.
3a

- 
A

rr
an

ge
 a

 fu
el

 
po

ve
rt

y 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 
P

ly
m

o
u

th
 C

it
iz

en
s 

A
d

vi
ce

 B
u

re
au

  
      

D
el

iv
er

 a
 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 fo

r 
at

 
le

as
t 1

00
 p

eo
pl

e 
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 fu
el

 
po

ve
rt

y 
as

 m
or

e 
ad

vi
ce

 is
 g

iv
en

 o
n 

ac
ce

ss
in

g,
 b

es
t 

de
al

s 
et

c.
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
09

 

4.
4 

R
ed

uc
e 

fu
el

 
po

ve
rt

y 
by

 
m

ax
im

is
in

g 
in

co
m

e 
by

 o
th

er
 s

ou
rc

es
 

4.
4a

- 
M

ak
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 to
 u

til
ity

 
tr

us
t f

un
ds

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

ch
ar

iti
es

 to
 p

ay
 o

ff 
en

er
gy

 d
eb

ts
  

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

iz
en

s 
A

d
vi

ce
 B

u
re

au
 

50
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 in

 
on

e 
ye

ar
 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 
as

si
st

ed
 w

ith
 fu

el
 

de
bt

 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 

Page 15



 
1

6
 

 A
IM

 5
 M

ax
im

is
e 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

d
el

iv
er

in
g

 F
in

an
ci

al
 In

cl
u

si
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

  
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
A

ct
io

ns
 

P
ar

tn
er

s/
L

ea
d

 
T

ar
ge

ts
 

O
ut

pu
t/O

ut
co

m
es

 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
5.

1a
 –

 D
ev

el
op

 fu
rt

he
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 

T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
  

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
  

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 th

e 
P

ly
m

ou
th

 W
el

fa
re

 
R

ig
ht

s 
F

or
um

, a
nd

 
D

ev
on

 M
on

ey
 

A
dv

ic
e 

F
or

um
.  

A
 s

tr
on

g 
P

ly
m

ou
th

 
W

el
fa

re
 R

ig
ht

s 
F

or
um

, a
nd

 D
ev

on
 

M
on

ey
 A

dv
ic

e 
F

or
um

, t
ha

t a
ct

s 
as

 a
dv

is
or

s 
to

 th
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 In

cl
us

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
  

A
pr

il 
20

09
 a

nd
 

si
x 

m
on

th
ly

 
re

vi
ew

. 

5.
1 

- 
S

up
po

rt
 

F
in

an
ci

al
 In

cl
us

io
n 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 

5.
1b

 –
 D

ev
el

op
 fu

rt
he

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 
pr

iv
at

e 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 
se

ct
or

 p
ar

tn
er

s 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

  
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
(s

) 
to

 b
e 

co
n

fi
rm

ed
 

  

E
st

ab
lis

h 
5 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 T

he
 P

en
si

on
s 

S
er

vi
ce

, J
ob

ce
nt

re
 

P
lu

s,
 H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
’s

 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

C
us

to
m

s 
an

d 
fu

el
 

pr
ov

id
er

s.
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 li
nk

s 
to

 
de

liv
er

 m
or

e 
an

d 
be

tte
r 

ad
vi

ce
  

A
pr

il 
20

09
 

5.
2a

 –
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
cl

us
io

n 
ad

vi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

k 
w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.  

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(S

oc
ia

l 
In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t)
, T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
(s

) 
to

 b
e 

co
n

fi
rm

ed
 

 

A
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

cl
us

io
n 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
 in

 
P

ly
m

ou
th

  

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

in
cl

us
io

n 
ad

vi
ce

 in
 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
. 

5.
2 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

cl
us

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

5.
2b

 -
 P

ro
du

ce
 a

 
re

gu
la

r 
se

rie
s 

of
 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
cl

us
io

n 
fa

ct
 

sh
ee

ts
 fo

r 
ci

rc
ul

at
io

n 
to

 
ad

vi
so

rs
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
-

us
er

s.
 

 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

iz
en

s 
A

d
vi

ce
 B

u
re

au
 

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

  
  

P
ro

du
ce

 4
 fa

ct
 

sh
ee

ts
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 o
n 

at
 le

as
t 2

 w
eb

si
te

s 
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 in

co
m

e 
m

ax
im

is
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s.
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9.
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 16



 
1

7
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
IM

 5
 M

ax
im

is
e 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

d
el

iv
er

in
g

 F
in

an
ci

al
 In

cl
u

si
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 (
C

o
n

t)
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

A
ct

io
ns

 
P

ar
tn

er
s/

L
ea

d
 

T
ar

ge
ts

 
O

ut
pu

t/O
ut

co
m

es
 

T
im

es
ca

le
s 

5.
2c

 –
 P

ro
du

ce
 a

 
re

gu
la

r 
se

rie
s 

of
 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
cl

us
io

n 
ad

vi
ce

 a
rt

ic
le

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f 

di
ffe

re
nt

 m
ed

ia
 o

ut
le

ts
 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
. 

  

P
ro

du
ce

 a
nd

 
di

st
rib

ut
e 

8 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

cl
us

io
n 

ar
tic

le
s 

pe
r 

an
nu

m
 

P
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g,
 

ne
tw

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

aw
ar

en
es

s-
ra

is
in

g 
ab

ou
t f

in
an

ci
al

 
in

cl
us

io
n 

is
su

es
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
. 

 

5.
2d

 D
ev

el
op

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
in

cl
us

io
n 

pa
ge

s 
on

 
P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
eb

si
te

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f u

si
ng

 
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
so

ftw
ar

e 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 
A

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 s

et
 o

f 
w

eb
 p

ag
es

 th
at

 
at

tr
ac

ts
 m

or
e 

us
er

s 
 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 
ad

vi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0 

 
5.

2e
 D

el
iv

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
ta

ke
 –

up
 o

f f
re

e 
sc

ho
ol

 
m

ea
ls

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 

lo
ca

lit
ie

s 
of

 g
re

at
es

t 
ne

ed
.  

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(C

hi
ld

re
ns

 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

, T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
. 

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

d
el

iv
er

y 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

(s
) 

to
 b

e 
co

n
fi

rm
ed

. 

T
ak

e-
up

 to
 b

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 li
nk

ed
 

to
 o

th
er

 a
dv

ic
e 

w
or

k 
in

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
an

d 
to

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
4 

ta
rg

et
ed

 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
fr

ee
 

sc
ho

ol
 m

ea
ls

 

M
or

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
re

ce
iv

e 
fr

ee
 s

ch
oo

l 
m

ea
ls

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 

m
ax

im
is

at
io

n 
of

 
in

co
m

e 
an

d 
he

al
th

y 
ea

tin
g 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0 

        

Page 17



 
1

8
 

 A
IM

 6
 M

o
n

it
o

r,
 e

va
lu

at
e 

an
d

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
h

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 In
cl

u
si

o
n

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
A

ct
io

ns
 

P
ar

tn
er

s/
L

ea
d

 
T

ar
ge

ts
 

O
ut

pu
t/O

ut
co

m
es

 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
6.

1a
 -

 S
et

 u
p 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 a

ct
io

ns
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 In

cl
us

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 In

cl
u

si
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

S
te

er
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p

. 
   

1 
m

ee
tin

g 
to

 b
e 

he
ld

 p
er

 q
ua

rt
er

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

9.
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
co

-o
rd

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

ag
ai

ns
t a

gr
ee

d 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

9 
an

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

re
vi

ew
. 

6.
2b

 –
 P

ro
du

ce
 a

nd
 

di
st

rib
ut

e 
re

gu
la

r 
st

at
is

tic
s 

on
 c

ity
-w

id
e 

ta
ke

-u
p 

fig
ur

es
 o

f 
W

el
fa

re
 B

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 

T
ax

 C
re

di
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f d
eb

t a
dv

ic
e 

gi
ve

n.
 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
w

el
fa

re
 b

en
ef

it,
 ta

x 
cr

ed
it 

an
d 

de
bt

 
ad

vi
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

  

S
ta

tis
tic

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 

Im
pr

ov
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 
W

el
fa

re
 B

en
ef

its
 

an
d 

T
ax

 C
re

di
ts

 
ta

ke
-u

p,
 d

eb
t 

ad
vi

ce
 w

or
k,

 
pr

om
ot

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t a
nd

 
in

fo
rm

 ta
rg

et
 

se
tti

ng
 a

nd
 

an
al

ys
is

.  

A
pr

il 
20

09
 a

nd
 

qu
ar

te
rly

. 

6.
1 

- 
M

on
ito

r 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

m
ad

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 

ov
er

al
l a

im
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 In

cl
us

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n.

   

6.
3c

- 
E

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 

ex
te

rn
al

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
to

 a
na

ly
se

 th
e 

af
fe

ct
 

of
 h

el
p 

re
ce

iv
ed

 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l (
S

o
ci

al
 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 U
n

it
),

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

cl
us

io
n 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

50
 c

lie
nt

s 
ra

nd
om

ly
 

se
le

ct
ed

 a
nd

 
qu

es
tio

ne
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ne

ss
 

of
 th

e 
ad

vi
ce

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 

im
pa

rt
ia

l a
ud

it 
ac

hi
ev

ed
  

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

10
 

    

Page 18



 19 

Appendix 1 
 
A brief guide to Welfare Benefits and Tax Credits 

 
ATTENDANCE ALLOWANCE  
A tax free, non-contributory and non means-tested benefit paid to people aged 65 or over who have 
needed help with personal care for at least 6 months (For people aged under 65, please see section 
on Disability Living Allowance).  
There are two rates of benefit depending on the amount of care and assistance required. 
 
BEREAVEMENT ALLOWANCE   
A taxable, contributory and non means-tested benefit, payable up to the 52nd week from the late 
spouse’s death. 
It is a weekly benefit payable to widows and widowers aged between 45 and state pension age.   
 
BEREAVEMENT PAYMENT 
A tax free, one off lump sum of £2000 payable when the late spouse has paid a certain level of 
national insurance contributions. 
It is non means-tested and payable to the surviving partner as long as they or the deceased spouse 
were not receiving retirement pension at the time of death.  
 
CARERS ALLOWANCE 
A taxable non-contributory and non mean-tested benefit which is payable to someone who is caring 
for a person receiving Attendance Allowance, or the middle/highest rate care component of Disability 
Living Allowance. 
 
CHILD BENEFIT 
A non-taxable, non-contributory and non means-tested benefit payable to anyone bringing up 
children. 
The child must be aged under 16, or under 20 and studying in full-time non-higher education,  
 
CHILDS TAX CREDIT- 
A non-taxable, non-contributory means-tested benefit payable to anyone bringing up children. 
The child must be aged under 16, or under 20 and studying in full-time non-higher education 
 
COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT   
A tax free, non-contributory and means-tested benefit paid by the Local Authority, to help cover or 
pay towards Council Tax. 
 
DISABILITY LIVING ALLOWANCE 
A tax free, non-contributory and non means-tested benefit payable to people with disabilities 
before the age of 65, and who have needed care or had mobility problems for at least 3 months. 
There are two components to the allowance based on care need and mobility issues. 
Either or both of the components may be claimed.   
 
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT ALLOWANCE 
Introduced on 27 October 2008 and replaced Incapacity Benefit and Income Support paid on 
incapacity grounds for new customer and is a new way of helping people with an illness or disability 
move into work, rather than stay on benefits.   
 
HOUSING BENEFIT 
A non-taxable, non-contributory and means-tested benefit paid by the Local Authority to help cover or 
pay towards rent 
 
 

Page 19



 20 

 
INCAPACITY BENEFIT 
A non means-tested, contributory benefit that is taxable at the two highest levels. It is payable to 
people who are incapable of work for at least 4 consecutive days. Some occupational pensions may 
be taken into consideration. 
People under 20 years of age should claim Incapacity Benefit In Youth. 
The illness must have started before pension age, and the claim should be made within 3 months of 
the first day of sickness. 
Employment Support Allowance has replaced this benefit from 27th October 2008 
 
INCOME SUPPORT 
A tax free, non-contributory and means tested benefit to help with everyday living costs. It can be 
paid to top up existing income or to people with no income. The amount you get depends on your 
family circumstances, your health, age, your income and any savings you may have. It is not payable 
to people who work for 16 hours or more per week, or have a partner that works 24 hours or more 
per week.  
 
INDUSTRIAL INJURIES DISABLEMENT BENEFIT 
A tax free, non-contributory and non means-tested benefit paid to people who become disabled 
because of an accident at work or due to certain prescribed diseases caused by their job. 
 
JOBSEEKERS ALLOWANCE 
The benefit is divided into two allowances. 
Contributory Jobseekers Allowance is a taxable, non means-tested benefit paid to unemployed 
people aged 18 and above, who work for less than 16 hours per week. 
Income-based Jobseekers Allowance is a taxable, means-tested and non-contributory benefit paid to 
unemployed people aged 18 and above, who work for less than 16 hours per week. 
 
LOCAL HOUSING ALLOWANCE  
Local Housing Allowance (LHA) is a way of calculating Housing Benefit for tenants renting 
accommodation from a private landlord. It was introduced nationally on 7 April 2008. It applies to 
private sector tenants who make a new claim for benefit, and for existing customers on Housing 
Benefit who change address or move into private sector accommodation. 
 
MATERNITY ALLOWANCE 
A non-taxable, contributory and non means-tested benefit paid to pregnant women.  
The benefit can be claimed from 11 weeks before the baby is due to the day following the child’s 
birth.  
 
PENSION CREDIT 
The Guarantee Credit element of Pension Credit provides a guaranteed income for all pensioners. 
It is non-taxable, non-contributory and means-tested. 
The Savings Credit element is paid to those aged 65 and over, who have saved for their retirement. 
It acts as a reward for those who have made provision above the basic State Retirement Pension. 
 
STATE RETIREMENT PENSION  
A taxable, contributory and non means-tested benefit payable at pension age. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 21 

SOCIAL FUND 
A variety of lump sum payments, grants and loans administered by Jobcentre Plus. 
Community Care Grants – a non-repayable grant for specific reasons such as help to resettle from 
institutional care. 
Budgetary Loans – A repayable loan for things that you cannot pay for in a lump sum. 
You must be receiving a means-tested benefit to apply.  
Crisis Loans – A repayable loan available to anyone who needs help with day-to-day living costs or in 
an emergency. 
Sure Start Maternity Grant – A non-repayable grant to help towards the cost of a new baby, available 
to families receiving a means-tested benefit and/or Child Tax Credit above the basic Family and Baby 
elements combined. 
Funeral grant - A non-repayable grant to help towards the cost of a funeral, available to anyone 
receiving a means-tested benefit. 
 
WIDOWED PARENTS ALLOWANCE 
A taxable, contributory and non means-tested benefit payable to a widow or widower with dependent 
children aged under 16, or under 19 and in full-time non-advanced education. 
 
WORKING TAX CREDIT 
A tax free, non-contributory means-tested Tax Credit. It is paid as a top-up to earnings for families, 
couples and single people. 
 
Appendix 2 
 
Income Maximisation Strategy 2006-2009 – Success stories  
 

Our multi-agency Income Maximisation Strategy received a highly commended award for Social 
Inclusion by the Institute of Revenues, Ratings and Valuations  

Unclaimed entitlements to Welfare Benefits and Tax Credits totalled over £12 million pounds as a 
result of partnership work across the city 

Thirty nine of 41targets have been achieved so far 

Close working between PCC and Westcountry Energy Action have enabled us to promote fuel 
efficiency and combat fuel poverty   

Over 5000 people have received advice regarding almost £190 million of personal problem debt 

Money advice has been delivered by Voluntary Sector partners and PCC working together in our 
housing offices  

Every quarter, the Advice For All group of organisations meet to further develop services in our city  

Sustaining the advice service infrastructure through core funding of £335,000 PCC has enabled third 
sector partners to generate £500,000 in additional project funding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 22 

 
Appendix 3 
 
Examples of Welfare Benefits/Tax Credit Take-Up/Debt work funded/delivered by 
Plymouth City Council 
 
 

Project Project provider  Take up from 
April 2006 to 

September 2008  

Total number of 
clients seen/claims 
received resulting in 
take-up 

General advice  Citizens Advice Bureau 
 

£5,712,066.00 
 

3656 

PCC Customer Services PCC/DWP 
 

£2,635,971.00 
 

1252 

Client Financial Services PCC 
 

£3,009,847.00 
 

778 
Welfare Benefits/Tax Credits 

Take Up Routeways 
 

£812,127.00 
 

264 

Total 
 

£12,170,011 
 

5950 
 
Appendix 4 
 
Welfare Benefits and Tax Credit Statistics10  

Type National  Plymouth 

Pension Credit (PC) 3.31 million (5.4% of the population) 14,000 (5.4% of the population) 

Working Tax Credit 
(WTC) 

9.94% of families receive WTC 9.92% of families receive WTC  
 

Income Support (IS) 2.2m (3.6% of the population) 
 

10,500 (4.1% of the population) 

Jobseekers Allowance 
(JSA) 

787,000 (1.29% of the population) 3,200 (1.27% of the population) 

Incapacity Benefit (IB) 2.38m (3.9% of the population) 
 

12,670 (5.05% of the population) 

Housing Benefit (HB) 4.04m (6.62% of the population) 19,000 (7.57% of the population) 

Council Tax Benefit 5.07m (8.3% of the population) 22,000 (8.77% of the population) 

 
 
  
 

                                                 
10www.dwp.gov.uk 

Page 22



                                               CITY OF PLYMOUTH                                
  
Subject:    Financial Inclusion Strategy 

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    17th March 2009 

Cabinet Member:   Councillor Brookshaw 

CMT Member:   Clive Turner 

Author: Darin Halifax, Community Cohesion Officer 

Contact:    Tel:  (01752 (30) 5446 
    e-mail: Darin.Halifax@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref: SIU/Financial Inclusion/Financial Inclusion Strategy 
2009-2012 

Part: I   

 
Executive Summary:  
 
This report sets out a draft Financial Inclusion Strategy and Action Plan for 2009-2012 
covering five aims on how we will approach Financial Inclusion in the city. This has been 
developed following multi-agency consultation. Financial Inclusion is the process which 
ensures a person’s in-coming money is maximised, their out-goings are controlled and 
they can exercise informed choices through access to basic financial services. The 
report recommends that Plymouth City Council endorse the strategy in order to improve 
the co-ordination and strategic approach to commissioning and provision of services 
and initiatives to increase financial inclusion.     
         
Corporate Plan 2008-2011:  
  
The Strategy proposed is directly linked to the poverty reduction element of Corporate 
Improvement Priority 4 : Narrowing the gap between communities and in particular 
supports the following strategic objectives used in service planning 2006-9:- 
• Improving health and well-being 
• Developing a prosperous economy 
• Promoting inclusive communities.  
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
None specifically for the purposes of this report. However the Strategy proposed seeks 
to help maximise value for money from existing budgets and resources associated with 
Financial Inclusion.  
 
There are no financial implications arising directly from the recommendations within this 
Cabinet report. Any developments with financial implications arising from the issues 
raised within the Financial Inclusion Strategy 2009-2012 would be subject of a future 
Cabinet report   

Page 23



Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 

The Strategy proposed outlines the positive effect of Financial Inclusion on a variety of 
aspects of well being including community safety. An Equalities Impact Assessment has 
been completed on the proposed strategy. This has highlighted positive impacts around 
the age, disability and race strands. There are also neutral impacts around gender, faith 
and belief and sexual orientation strands and further work around community 
engagement and service user diversity monitoring is recommended. The commissioning 
process will ensure this work is delivered by the contract delivery organisations.      
 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
In order to improve co-ordination of, and the strategic approach to, Financial Inclusion in 
Plymouth and respond to the current economic situation, it is recommended that 
Cabinet: - 
 
Adopts the proposed Financial Inclusion Strategy and Action Plan for 2009-2012. 
 

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
The alternative would be to continue without a city-wide strategy for Financial Inclusion 
and not replace the Income Maximisation Strategy, which ends in March 2009. This 
could mean that service provision could be wrongly prioritised for the city, not taking into 
account the changing economic and financial circumstances resulting in gaps in service 
and poor value for money. It could also have an adverse effect on strategies to help 
people back into work, reduce pensioner and child poverty and reduce problem debt. 
Uncoordinated services could also have an adverse effect on the local economy and 
future government funding for the authority (The proposed strategy provides further 
details on the advantages of well coordinated Financial Inclusion work). 
 
 Feedback from multi-agency consultation indicated strong support for such a strategy to 
improve co-ordination and strategic approach. This will also encourage effective 
partnership working and commissioning. 
 

Background papers: 
• Financial Inclusion Strategy and Action Plan for 2009-2012 (draft) 
• Corporate Plan 
• Income Maximisation Strategy 2006-2009 
• Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Sign off: 

Head 
of Fin 

CoSF 
SC89  
002 

Head 
of Leg 

LT 
0043 

Head 
of HR 

N/A Head 
of AM 

N/A Head of 
IT 

N/A Head of 
Strat 
Proc 

N/A 

Originating SMT Member: Peter Aley (Head of Safer Communities) 
 
 
 

Page 24



1. Introduction  
 
1.1This report proposes adoption of Financial Inclusion Strategy 2009-2012 for   

Plymouth   
 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 Against a national background of a rapidly worsening economic situation, Plymouth 
faces major challenges in supporting people to cope with financial pressures. 
 

 2.2 With the steep decline in house prices, increasing unemployment and unavailability 
of affordable credit, problem debt and house repossessions are increasing rapidly. Yet 
nationally, there is nearly £10 billion of unclaimed welfare benefits and tax credits. 
 

 2.3 In the last 12 months, Plymouth has experienced a 75% increase in mortgage and 
57% increase in rent possession orders. The third sector expects to deal with over 
£100m of debt in Plymouth this year, and - based on national figures – we could have 
£48.5 million in unclaimed welfare benefits and tax credits.  
 

  2.4 People with problem debt and low incomes are likely to experience poorer quality of 
life and less opportunity. Often hard earned wages go on high interest credit repayments 
which means less of those wages are recycled within the city. Many don’t feel the full 
benefit of a return to work as they are missing out on their entitlement to tax credits and 
welfare benefits. Their life story acts as a disincentive to others thinking of making the 
same journey and means Plymouth’s overall income and expenditure is not as high as it 
could be.  
 

  2.5 The government recommends that those experiencing money problems seek expert 
advice. Its back to work agenda is likely to see an increase in enquiries from lone 
parents, sick and disabled people. However, tightening budgets mean many agencies 
are withdrawing these services. For instance, Job Centreplus has withdrawn its’ 
traditional role as first port of call for benefits advice; instead signposting callers to 
leaflets or the third sector.   
 

  2.6 Plymouth has a good track record of working in partnership on financial inclusion 
issues. Our award-winning multi-agency Income Maximisation Strategy 2006-2009, 
delivered over £13m in previously unclaimed benefits and tax credits and we have a 
successful track record of commissioning advice services from the third sector. 
Nationally too, some progress has been made. Pension poverty has fallen by 50% over 
the last 6 years and over half a million children lifted out of poverty over the last five 
years.  But we now face new challenges.    
 

 2.7 These challenges will inequitably see an increased demand for local advice and 
support services of the kind provided by the third sector. In Plymouth, compared to the 
same time last year, debt enquiries are up 26% and welfare benefits enquiries up 50% 
in the Third sector.  

 
2.8 We have been working on a number of short term actions to assist people to cope 
with the current economic downturn, e.g. our multi-agency approach to mortgage and 
rent rescue. However, in order to make sustainable changes to people’s lives, we need 

Page 25



a strategic approach to financial inclusion in Plymouth to co-ordinate existing services 
and develop new ones according to need.   

   
 2.9 Ensuring advice and support is provided in the best possible way and delivering 

financial inclusion through multi-agency work, are key components of a new Financial 
Inclusion Strategy proposed for Plymouth during 2009 –20 12. Financial Inclusion is the 
process which ensures a person’s in-coming money is maximised, their out-goings are 
controlled and they can exercise informed choices through access to basic financial 
services. 
 
3.0 Consultation 
 

 3.1 In January 2009, Plymouth City Council (PCC) initiated a consultation process to 
evaluate the success of the Income Maximisation Strategy 2006-2009 and incorporate 
the lessons into the Financial Inclusion Strategy for 2009-2012. 
 
3.2 PCC consulted with members of the Income Maximisation Strategy (2006-9) 
steering group, LSP, Councillors, Plymouth Welfare Rights Forum and Plymouth Money 
Advice Forum about the priorities and content of the new Financial Inclusion Strategy.  
 
4.0 Strategy 
 
4.1 Following this initial period of consultation, PCC has produced a draft Financial 
Inclusion strategy and action plan.  
 
4.2 The Strategy’s key aims, which will be reflected in advice and support services 
commissioned, are to: -   
 

• Maximise take up of welfare benefits and tax credits with an emphasis on in-work 
benefits 

• Reduce problem debt 
• Provide accessible and high quality Financial Inclusion services 
• Reduce fuel poverty  
• Maximise opportunities for delivering Financial Inclusion through partnership 

working 
 
4.3 Ultimately, the aim is to promote financial inclusion in Plymouth to maximise 
opportunities and improve quality of life during difficult times. 
 
5.0 Equality 
 

 5.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for the proposed strategy1.     
 
 
 
6.0 Conclusion 
 

                                            
1 Age, (young/old) Disability, Gender (Male, Female), Race, Religion and Belief, Sexual Orientation (Lesbian, Gay, 
Bi-sexual, Trans-gender) 

Page 26



     6.1 This report therefore seeks adoption of the proposed Financial Inclusion Strategy 
and action plan 2009-2012 (attached) as a way of helping to improve co-ordination and 
strategic approach to financial inclusion in Plymouth.     

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



AIM 1 – Maximise take up of welfare benefits and tax credits with an emphasis on in-work benefits  
Objectives Actions Partners/ 

Lead
Targets Output/                          

Outcomes
Timescales Progress (up to 24th November 2009) Progress (up to 17th January 2010)

1.1 - Ensure 
take up of in-
work welfare 
benefits and in 
work tax 
credits.

1.1a - 
Commission and 
establish welfare 
benefits and tax 
credit advice 
services, 
encouraging 
partnership work 
where 
appropriate.

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit) 

Achieve a city 
wide total of at 
least £4m per 
annum of 
previously 
unclaimed 
Welfare Benefits 
and Tax Credits.

Increase the 
“value”of work 
and reduce 
poverty. 

April 2009 and 
quarterly review.

SLA's with CAB and Routeways agreed and 
signed.

1.2 - Support 
families to 
access welfare 
benefits and tax 
credit services, 
working in 

1.2a.Work to 
engage with 
vulnerable groups 
to increase take 
up of in work tax 
credits and 

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit) and 

Achieve a city 
wide total of 
£600,000 in child 
and family related 
benefits and 
contribute to a 
total of at least 
£4m per annum 

Reduce the 
amount of 
children in 
poverty in 

April 2009 and 
quarterly review.

RW: JB in post 12 months in which time 
uptake has quadrupled.  Reaching families 
through Children's Centres, pregnant mum's 
groups (Sure Start, pregnant mums groups, 
SS maternity grants).  Return to work advice, 
benefit check option, childcare.  Help with 
form filling.  Referrals and signposting e.g. 

24/11/09     Attendees: Julie Black, Routeways & Plymouth Welfare Rights Forum (JB).  Jo Hambly, Social Inclusion Unit (JH).  Gill Tischler, Cab (GT).   Pat Newton, PCC Housing (PN). Jac
Apologies: Paul Deacon, Tomorrow's People & Devon Money Advice Forum (PD). David Fletcher, Energy Action (withdrawn from group).

working in 
partnership 
where 
appropriate

credits and 
associated 
welfare benefits

Unit) and 
Routeways 
(RW)

£4m per annum 
of previously 
unclaimed 
Welfare Benefits 
and Tax Credits.

poverty in 
Plymouth. form filling.  Referrals and signposting e.g. 

CAB for legal queries.  Increased visits to 
Plympton/Plymstock - child related, return to 
work and redundancy advice.

1.2 - Support 
families to 
access welfare 
benefits and tax 
credit services, 
working in 
partnership 
where 
appropriate

1.2b – Deliver 
targeted 
campaigns aimed 
at different 
vulnerable groups 
e.g. pensioners, 
carers, homeless 
people, people 
with learning 
disabilities etc 

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit) and RW

Deliver at least 4 
targeted 
campaigns per 
year 

Improve access 
for vulnerable 
groups and 
reduce barriers 
to entitlement of 
in-work tax 
credits and 
welfare benefits

April 2009 and 
quarterly review.

RW: No plans yet - watch this space.  JB 
providing evening and Saturday sessions for 
pregnant women.                                                                      
Devon Energy Action: Eon offers entitlement 
checks and phone advice - report for last 6 
months shows 50 entitlement checks but only 
4 where benefits have been taken up.  Also 
Cosy Homes - take up for scheme is low - 
1000 across Devon in 3 years.  There is a 
delay involved in this process which means 
that clients don't always remember.

RW: Saturday session with Great 
Expectations and via Children's Centres.  
Also been working with Amber Initiatives to 
deliver services to BME communities e.g. 
Polish families.                                                  
CAB: Have delivered 32 HMRV awareness 
sessions, targeting 78 workers and 472 
clients, also bringing in £1million of additional 
entitlements.

Objectives Actions Partners/       
Lead

Targets Output/                
Outcomes

Timescales Actions

2.1 - Provide 
debt and money 
advice services

2.1a 
–Commission 
debt and money 
advice services, 
encouraging 

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 

Contribute to an 
advice network 
that will deal with 
a city wide total 
of £100m in 

More people 
have access to 
debt advice in 

April 2009.

SLA's with CAB and Routeways agreed and 
signed.                                                                     
CAB: £24.3million of priority debt and 
£16.3million of non-priority debt have been 
dealt with in the first 6 months.  This is on par 

Annual figures to be provided at April 
meeting.

AIM.2 – Reduce problem debt 

advice services
encouraging 
partnership work 
where 
appropriate.

Inclusion 
Unit) 

of £100m in 
personal problem 
debt per annum

debt advice in 
Plymout

dealt with in the first 6 months.  This is on par 
with previous years and does not show a 
significant increase but expecting more 
clients after Christmas around debt.

meeting.

P
age 29



2.2 – Support 
vulnerable 
groups to 
access debt 
and money 
advice services, 
working in 
partnership 
where 
appropriate 

2.2a – Deliver 
targeted 
campaigns aimed 
at different 
vulnerable groups 
e.g. carers, 
homeless people, 
people being 
repossessed, 
people with 
learning 
disabilities etc

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit) and 
CAB

Deliver at least 4 
targeted 
campaigns per 
year aimed at 
different 
vulnerable group

Improve access 
for vulnerable 
groups and 
reduce barriers 
to debt and 
money advice 
services 

April 2009 and 
quarterly review.

CAB: (1) Older people - outreach with Age 
Concern once a month (2) Unemployed - 
Flexible New Deal contract - wider than 
Plymouth but statistics show 'in-work' 
benefits (3) Homelessness - delivered 
through worker situated at Midland House (4) 
Gypsies and Travellers (G&T) - training G&T 
representatives to provide support to G&T 
community and work around migrant workers 
planned for next year.

CAB: Plans for 2010/11 include (1) Work with 
separated parents with Parents Apart project 
(2) Training with Gypsy and Traveller 
communities (3) Possiblity of work with 
Refugee Action and Race equality Council to 
reach BME groups.

Objectives Actions Partners/               
Lead

Targets Output/                             
Outcomes

Timescales Actions

3.1 –Improve 
financial 
inclusion 
provision and 
services

3.1a - Encourage 
partners to make 
funding bids in 
order to support 
and develop 
provision of 
financial inclusion 
services 

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), Third 
Sector 
organisations

Secure £600,000 
per annum of 
external funding 

More funding for 
advice services 
in Plymouth

Apr-2009

RW & CAB: separated parents project - 
currently recruiting - interviewing next week 
for 3 posts.  CAB involved in project led by 
MIND working specifically with ex-offenders 
around financial inclusion.

CAB: (1) Separated Parents project 
(£300,000) (2) CAB + Flexible New Deal 
(£80,000 pa x 5 years) (3) CAB + Jobcentre 
Plus, Future Jobs Fund - not confirmed yet 
but project to maximise income whilst on 
provision (4) CAB +  Royal bank of Scotland 
£7,000 to train 'money friends'.

3.1b – Continue Plymouth City 
CAB: A4A has just undertaken 3 year review 
which was very positive and demonstrated 

AIM.3 – Provide accessible and high quality Financial Inclusion services 

3.1b – Continue 
to develop and 
support Advice 
For All as a 
network for 
advice 
organisations

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), Third 
Sector 
organisations

Develop a 
dedicated 
website and 
encourage more 
partnership 
working

Increase the 
opportunities for 
people to 
receive advice 
services

Apr-2009

which was very positive and demonstrated 
the value of the forum and collaborative 
working.  This means there has been less 
competition for funding and funders haven't 
had to choose between advice agencies.  
Website is being updated with a database of 
all advice organisations.

Website is running - all agencies are on there 
with their own passwords to update their own 
details,

3.1 –Improve 
financial 
inclusion 
provision and 
services cont'd

3.1c – Promote 
and develop a 
strong Credit 
Union in 
Plymouth, to 
become a formal 
partner with 
Plymouth City 
Council

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), City of 
Plymouth 
Credit Union, 
Fortress 
Credit Union, 
Hope Credit 
Union

Identify a 
preferred Credit 
Union provider 
for the city and 
investigate 
payroll 
deductions for 
PCC staff 

Reduce financial 
exclusion 
through Credit 
Union services 
that provide 
opportunities to 
save and access 
low cost credit 

Oct 2009 and 6 
monthly review

SIU: A consultant has been engaged on a 6 
month consultancy basis, to start in January. 
1st stage of the process is to write a service 
spec and invite credit unions (CU) to 
respond.  We are hoping for collaborative 
working from CU's but the project will work 
with whomever responds.

CAB/RW: Closing date for expression of 
interest from CU's end Feb 2010

3.1d – Promote 
the Advice 4 All 
training 
programme for 
advisors and 

Plymouth 
Citizens 
Advice 
Bureau, 
Plymouth City 
Council, Third 
Sector 

Ensure training 
programme is 
available on at 
least 2 websites 
and in 2 city wide 

Increase the 
quality and 
breadth of 
advice in 

July 2009 and 
quarterly review

Main route for training promotion if via CAB 
and A4A.  CAB has a database of over 1000 
people interested in training and the 
newsletter goes out to all on the database 
and all A4A agencies.  CAB also holds 
satisfaction ratings about training from 

CAB: Evaluation positive. A4A notes 
summarise issues.  Regular newsletters via 
email are working well.advisors and 

organisations 

Sector 
organisations 
and 
education 
providers.

and in 2 city wide 
publications

advice in 
Plymouth satisfaction ratings about training from 

attendees and their managers about the 
quality and consistency of advice.

email are working well.

P
age 30



3.1 –Improve 
financial 
inclusion 
provision and 
services cont'd

3.1e – Train PCC 
front line staff and 
members in 
Financial 
Inclusion topic

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), Third 
Sector 
organisations 
and 
education 
providers.

Train at least 20 
front line staff 
and 10 members

People using the 
call centre, and 
councillor 
surgeries 
receive 
appropriate 
advice

Dec 2009 and 
quarterly review

SIU: Invested £2,000 in to City of Plymouth 
CU to provide CU awareness training. Ability 
to train more than 10 members as 2x evening 
sessions have been arranged in February.       
Change in PCC First Stop (civic reception) 
may be able to promote CU's as number of 
front line staff will increase and customers 
will be able to access info at first point of 
contact allowing them to be more flexible.                                                                      
D&C Police have their own local initiative 
about doorstep and internet scams where 
people are having money taken from them.  
They report this is not a huge issue in 
Plymouth but has big effects for those who 
are victims.

3.1f  - Develop 
outreach advice 
services in the 
community e.g. 
community 
centres, Sure 
starts, schools 
etc.

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit) and RW

Ensure that there 
are at least 10 
regular outreach 
services in 
Plymouth, 
delivered in the 
community

More people 
have accessible 
advice services

Mar-2010

RW: More than 10 - go anywhere to do 
sessions: Schools, PSA's, Children's centres.  
Bookings for next year are already in and 
RW are providing a reactive service that will 
go anywhere they are invited.  Word about 
sessions is getting around.

Objectives Actions Partners/                     
Lead

Targets Output/                             
Outcomes

Timescales Actions

4.1 Improve 
education and 
awareness 
about energy 
efficiency and 
fuel poverty.

4.1a – Deliver 
fuel poverty 
awareness 
sessions to multi-
agency staff, 
advisers, 
community, user 
and interest 
groups.

Westcountry 
Energy Action 
Plymouth City 
Council, Third 
Sector 
organisations

Deliver fuel 
poverty 
awareness 
sessions to a 
minimum of 100 
people per 
annum.

More fuel 
poverty advisors 
in Plymouth

April 2009.

CAB: Marie fuel debt and poverty - going out 
to advise advisors - also trains energy 
advisors to understand the situation e.g. EDF 
trust fund. EDF conference workshop 
delivered to 25 people.  Next financial year 
need to map targets for training and different 
audiences.                                                                     
DEA: Energy Savings Trust is only for the 
energy rich and higher income families - big 
switch in marketting of advice - don't want 
marketting to fuel poor.  Fuel poor funded 
through e.g. Cosy Devon                                                                                 
Training provided includes (a) advisor 
training (b) on demand e.g. PCC - less in 
demand now (c) Social Housing 
providers/tenant centred advice - CAB met 
with Clive Turner Director of PCH this week 
to look at ways to develop.

AIM.4 – Reduce fuel poverty 

P
age 31



4.2 Embed fuel 
poverty 
awareness 
within the 
advice process.

4.2a - Provide 
fuel poverty 
advice in the 
context of general 
financial inclusion 
advice services.

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), Third 
Sector 
organisations

Ensure that front 
line financial 
inclusion services 
have staff trained 
in fuel poverty 
advice

Increased 
knowledge and 
understanding of 
issues regarding 
fuel poverty.

Oct-2009

CAB: Marie (dedicated Fuel Poverty worker) - 
A4A for future revision to get clever about 
referrals to do more with less.                                                                               
Some discussion around what a fuel poverty 
advisor is as they do not have to have 
qualifications like a debt advisor…what is an 
energy advisor??  Energy advice as relates 
to debt management. 

4.3 Raise 
awareness in 
the advice 
sector to 
alleviating fuel 
poverty in 
generic advice 
services

4.3a- Arrange a 
fuel poverty 
conference

Plymouth 
Citizens 
Advice 
Bureau 

Deliver a 
conference for at 
least 100 people 

Reduction in fuel 
poverty as more 
advice is given 
on accessing, 
best deals etc.

Sep-2009
CAB: Fuel conference delivered for 2009 - 
approx 100 attendees.

4.4 Reduce fuel 
poverty by 
maximising 

4.4a- Make 
applications to 
utility trust funds 

Plymouth 
Citizens 50 applications in 

More people 
assisted with Apr-2010

CAB: Info to follow at next meeting but initial 
impression is that 40+ cases have been dealt 

maximising 
income by other 
sources

utility trust funds 
and other 
charities to pay 
off energy debts

Citizens 
Advice 
Bureau 

50 applications in 
one year

assisted with 
fuel debt

Apr-2010
impression is that 40+ cases have been dealt 
with via Watercare for water debt (without 
other utlities).

Objectives Actions Partners/                             
Lead

Targets Output/                             
Outcomes

Timescales Actions

5.1 - Support 
Financial 
Inclusion 
partnership 
working

5.1a – Develop 
further 
partnership work 
with Third Sector

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), Third 
Sector 
organisations 

Identify and 
provide specific 
support for the 
Plymouth 
Welfare Rights 
Forum, and 
Devon Money 
Advice Forum. 

A strong 
Plymouth 
Welfare Rights 
Forum, and 
Devon Money 
Advice Forum, 
that acts as 
advisors to the 
Financial 
Inclusion 
Strategic 
Steering Group 

April 2009 and 
six monthly 
review

Groups supported by providing venues for 
meeting (Council House), both groups 
offered service to send out minutes.  Will 
continue to provide specific support as 
necessary.

AIM 5 Maximise opportunities for delivering Financial Inclusion through partnership working 

P
age 32



5.1 - Support 
Financial 
Inclusion 
partnership 
working cont'd

5.1b – Develop 
further 
partnership work 
with private and 
public sector 
partners

Plymouth City 
Council, 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit) and 
CAB

Establish 5 
initiatives to work 
with The 
Pensions 
Service, 
Jobcentre Plus, 
Her Majesty’s 
Revenues and 
Customs and fuel 
providers.

Improved links 
to deliver more 
and better 
advice 

Apr-2009

DWP - no more surgeries in local authorites.  
HMRC - no more grants funding for voluntary 
organisations.  JobCentre+ benefits advice 
reducing daily.                                                                                                                          
CAB: working with JobCentre+ on Flexible 
New Deal and people with disabilities on 
A4e.  Rapid response for redundancies.                                                                       
DEA: Cosy Devon have had investment from 
Eon into social housing sector charitable trust 
fund.  Warm front - home insulation and 
heating systems using Central Government 
money to subsidise; only one provider is 
delivering heating systems.  £150million for 
next year.

5.2 Promote 
financial 
inclusion 
services and 
information

5.2a 
–Commission 
financial inclusion 
advice services, 
encouraging 
partnership work 
where 
appropriate.

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit)

A dedicated 
financial inclusion 
advice service in 
Plymouth 

More people 
have access to 
financial 
inclusion advice 
in Plymouth

April 2009.

CAB deliver advice on issues not 
debt/benefits e.g. financial capability and 
management.  CAB are trialling providing 
above for debt clients as pre-requisite to 
seeing advice worker.  Client would work on 
their own budget in the training session so it 
is ready to take to advice worker.  Big 
demand for such session but low attendance.

Plymouth 

5.2 Promote 
financial 
inclusion 
services and 
information

5.2b - Produce a 
regular series of 
financial inclusion 
fact sheets for 
circulation to 
advisors and 
service-users.

Plymouth 
Citizens 
Advice 
Bureau 
Plymouth City 
Council, Third 
Sector 
organisations

Produce 4 fact 
sheets per 
annum to be 
included on at 
least 2 websites 

Improve 
information 
relating to 
income 
maximisation 
service 
providers.

Oct-2009

CAB: 13 factsheets developed - lastest on 
older people and for those with forces 
background.  DCFS best practice.  Linking 
factsheets to CMS website.

5.2c – Produce a 
regular series of 
financial inclusion 
advice articles to 
be included in a 
variety of different 
media outlets

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), Third 
Sector 
organisations.

Produce and 
distribute 8 
financial inclusion 
articles per 
annum

Provide an 
opportunity for 
information 
sharing, 
networking and 
awareness-
raising about 
financial 
inclusion issues

April 2009.

CAB: 2 fuel poverty articles and TV coverage 
for fuel poverty.  Publicity for CAB new 
opening hours (Monday afternoon) in New 
Year.  Credit Unions after Christmas break.  
SIU to look in to regular articles in local paper 
(Extra, PCC People mag?).                                                                        
PCC article on effects of long hospital stay 
on Council Tax (CT) and Housing Benefits 
(HB).                                                                                       
Group advised that the way the press 
evaluate articles is via 3 words: biggest, first 
and different - this is what differentiates an 
advert from an article!

P
age 33



5.2d Develop 
financial inclusion 
pages on 
Plymouth City 
Council website, 
including 
investigating the 
possibility of 
using interactive 
software

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit),

A dedicated set 
of web pages 
that attracts more 
users

Increase the 
opportunities for 
people to 
receive advice 
services

Mar-2010

PCC has web pages and CT/HB calculator - 
would like more e.g. budget planner.  PCC 
website currently under review and being 
analysed page by page corporately - we will 
be contacted when they get to our page to 
find out what we would like to keep/add.  
Deadline may be optimistic as group has no 
control over corporate website review.

5.2 Promote 
financial 
inclusion 
services and 
information

5.2e Deliver 
services to 
encourage the 
take –up of free 
school meals, 
particularly in 
localities of 
greatest need.

Plymouth City 
Council 
(Childrens 
Services) and 
RW

Take-up to be 
specifically linked 
to other advice 
work in contract 
and to also 
include 4 
targeted 
initiatives per 
year to increase 
the number of 
children 
accessing free 
school meals

More children 
receive free 
school meals 
leading to 
maximisation of 
income and 
healthy eating

Mar-2010

RW: carry this literature everywhere they go - 
promoted at PSA events.  Brad Pearce can 
provide a breakdown of schools and take up 
so that we can target areas of the city.

AIM 6 Monitor, evaluate and review the Financial Inclusion Strategy
Objectives Actions Partners/                               

Lead
Targets Output/                        

Outcomes
Timescales Actions

6.1 - Monitor 
and evaluate 
progress made 
towards overall 
aims identified 
in the Financial 
Inclusion 
Strategy Action 
Plan.

6.1a - Set up and 
facilitate quarterly 
meetings to 
monitor and 
evaluate actions 
identified in the 
Financial 
Inclusion Strategy

Financial 
Inclusion 
Strategy 
Steering 
group.

1 meeting to be 
held per quarter 
commencing July 
2009.

Improve 
strategic co-
ordination and 
service delivery 
against agreed 
targets

July 2009 and 
quarterly review.

SIU: First meeting December 2009 - JH to 
arrange quarterly meetings for 2010 - group 
prefers not to have Friday's and to avoid half 
terms/school holidays.

6.2b – Produce 
and distribute 
regular statistics 
on city-wide take-
up figures of 
Welfare Benefits 
and Tax Credits 
and the amount 
of debt advice 
given.

Plymouth 
City Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), 
organisations 
providing 
welfare 
benefit, tax 
credit and 
debt advice 
services 

Statistics 
produced and 
distributed 
quarterly

Improve 
understanding of 
Welfare Benefits 
and Tax Credits 
take-up, debt 
advice work, 
promote 
achievement 
and inform 
target setting 
and analysis. 

April 2009 and 
quarterly.

Statistics from RW and CAB are delivered 
promptly to the SIU on a quartely basis. 
Update at next meeting.

AIM 6 Monitor, evaluate and review the Financial Inclusion Strategy

P
age 34



6.1 - Monitor 
and evaluate 
progress made 
towards overall 
aims identified 
in the Financial 
Inclusion 
Strategy Action 
Plan.

6.3c- Engage with 
external 
stakeholders to 
analyse the affect 
of help received

Plymouth 
City Council 
(Social 
Inclusion 
Unit), 
organisations 
providing 
financial 
inclusion 
advice 
service

50 clients 
randomly 
selected and 
questioned about 
the effectiveness 
and 
appropriateness 
of the advice 
received

Independent and 
impartial audit 
achieved 

Feb-2010

CAB: All training services are evaluated and 
once a year over one week drop in clients are 
asked about effectiveness and outcomes - 
CAB have a 2008 report that is available.

P
age 35



Direction of Travel Evidence Action point Issues/gaps

£4.63m achieved in previously 
unclaimed welfare benefits and 
tax credits for April 2009 to 
December 2009    

JH to report 2009/10 full 
years figures                                                   
April 2010

£792,144 achieved in previously 
unclaimed welfare benefnits and 
tax credits for April 2009 to 
December 2009    

JH to report 2009/10 full 
years figures                                                       
April 2010

Extent of child poverty = 1 in 5 
children - how do we measure 
the impact of advice work on 
this?

 Julie Black, Routeways & Plymouth Welfare Rights Forum (JB).  Jo Hambly, Social Inclusion Unit (JH).  Gill Tischler, Cab (GT).   Pat Newton, PCC Housing (PN). Jacki Williams, JobCentre Plus (JW). Colin Trend, Money Advice Forum (CT). Sarah Yardley, PCC Revs and Bens (SY).    

December 2009    April 2010 this?

See action point

JB to provide information on 
4 events for 2009/10 and 
planned events for 2010/11 
April 2010

Direction of Travel Evidence Action point Issues/gaps

CAB have dealt with £79.9m 
between April-December 2009

JH to report 2009/10 full 
years figures                                                                                             
April 2010

between April-December 2009
April 2010

P
age 36



Four campaigns delivered by 
CAB:                                            
(1) Older People                                     
(2) unemployed                                                            
(3) Homeless                                                                      
(4) G&T

GT to provide information on 
4 events planned for 2010/11                                                    
April 2010

Benefits access for BME/ASR 
and migrant workers - link to 
Supporting People?

Direction of Travel Evidence Action point Issues/gaps

1 successful bid supported - 
Separated partners project 
(£300,000)                                                                       
2 further bids made

GT and JB  to provide details 
of funding bids.                    
PN to bring info about Future 
Jobs Fund                                                         
April 2010

GT to update latest 

Website up and running

GT to update latest 
developments.                                                
JW to update JC+ page.                                                
All to check passwords and 
access.                                                       
April 2010

Process in place to select a 
preferred partner credit union by 
the end of March 2010 

GT/JH to update           April 
2010 

Training course itinerary 
produced for 209/10

GTto update                    April 
2010 

P
age 37



GT to establish number of 
PCC employees who have 
attended A4A courses.                                    
JH to inform re credit union 
training (April 2010)

More than 10 outreach services 
provided by Routeways and 
CAB

JB/PN to give brief examples 
of outreach, any numbers 
seen and outcomes                      
April 2010

Direction of Travel Evidence Action point Issues/gaps

Fuel poverty awareness 
sessions delivered to at least 25 
people

GT to confirm numbers 
receiving awareness sessions 
at April meeting

P
age 38



Advisors in CAB and routeways 
have received fule poverty 
training 

Conference delivered 4th 
november 2009

See action point
GT to update                     

See action point
GT to update                     
April 2010

Direction of Travel Evidence Action point Issues/gaps

Appropriate support received / 
Room bookings completed and 
mailshots sent as requested

P
age 39



Initiatives developed with 
Jobcentre Plus and Cosy Devon 
(fuel provider Eon)

GT DF and JB to update  
April 2010

DWP link is missing

FI advice service being delivered 
by both CAB and Routeways as 
part of their contracted service 
delivery

GT and JB to update      April 
2010

4 fact sheets produced for 
2009/10

GT to update as required 
April 2010

2 fuel poverty articles + TV 
coverage, and 1 PCC article

All to update                     
April 2010

P
age 40



Web pages available, but 
requires updating 

JH to update group about 
corporate website upgrade  
April 2010

See action point
JH to bring data on take up of 
FSM across city for April 
meeting

Data on take up of Free School 
Meals across the city.

Direction of Travel Evidence Action point Issues/gaps

2010 meetings booked
JH to circulate dates via email 
by mid January

Quarterly statistics received JH to update at next meeting

P
age 41



Evaluation undertaken and 
shared with group

GT to circulate evcaluation 
report for 2008 by email by 
March

P
age 42



 
 

Request for Scrutiny Work Programme Item 
 

1 Title of Work Programme 
Item 
 

Financial Inclusion Strategy – Refresh of the action plan 
for 2010/11 

 
 

2 Responsible Director (s) 
 

Director for Community Services – Carole Burgoyne 

3 Responsible Officer 
 
Tel No.   
 

Peter Aley, Assistant Director for Safer Communities 
 

304321 
 

4 Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Councillor Brookshaw, Cabinet Member for Safer and 
Stronger Communities 

 
5 Aim Review progress in delivering the Financial Inclusion 

Strategy’s action plan 2009/10 to assist in developing the 
refreshed action plan for 2010/11 
 

6 Objectives 
 
 
 
 
 

The Financial Inclusion Strategy aims to – 
 
• Maximise take up of welfare benefits and tax credits 

with an emphasis on in-work benefits 
• Reduce problem debt 
• Provide accessible and high quality Financial Inclusion 

services 
• Reduce fuel poverty  
• Maximise opportunities for delivering Financial 

Inclusion through partnership working 
   

7 Benefits It will enable us to tailor the services we already deliver to 
those with the greatest need and to produce real 
outcomes. This will also enable us to get value for money 
for the services we commission.   

 
8 Beneficiaries Individuals and communities accessing Financial Inclusion 

advice services especially those on the lowest incomes 
and with the most pressing financial problems 
 

9 Criteria for Choosing 
Topics 
 
 

• Corporate priority area 
• Issue consistently identified by Members as key 

through constituency activity  
• Public interest issue covered in local media 

 
10 Scope To assess the current action plan and to suggest 

improvements for the refreshed action plan for 2010/11. 
 

Page 43



11 Exclusions • Amendments to the Financial Inclusion Strategy, 
(which has already been agreed by Cabinet 
Member delegated decision and is a three year 
strategy) 

• Work outside the scope of the Financial Inclusion 
Strategy 

 
12 Programme Dates  
 Timescales and 

Interdependences  
Milestones Target Date for 

Achievement 
Responsible 

Officer 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Known milestones 
for achieving the 

final report 

Dates of known 
milestones  

 

13 Links to other projects 
or initiatives / plans 

 The Financial Inclusion Strategy is part of CIP4 in 2009/10 
Corporate Plan 

 
14 Relevant Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel / 
Membership if Task and 
Finish Group 
 

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

Task and Finish Group – Councillors Berrow, Fox, Mrs 
Nicholson and Wildy 

 
15 Lead Officer for Panel 

 
Giles Perritt 

 
16 Reporting arrangements 

 
Task and Finish Group March 2010 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 31 March 2010 

 
13 Resources 

 
Staff time 

14 Budget implications 
 

 

15 Risk analysis 
 

Not undertaking the scrutiny would mean a missed 
opportunity to influence the action plan prior to adoption. 
 

16  Project Plan / Actions 
 

 

 

Page 44


	Agenda
	3 FINANCIAL INCLUSION STRATEGY - REFRESH OF THE ACTION PLAN
	Cabinet Report
	Minutes
	PID


